**Support Guide** for Teachers of EAL Learners Version 1.0







English as an Additional Language



English as an Additional Language: Support Guide for Teachers of EAL Learners, Version  $1.0\,$ 

ISBN: 978-0-7711-6461-3

Copyright © 2022, the Government of Manitoba, represented by the Minister of Education and Early Childhood Learning.

Manitoba Education and Early Childhood Learning Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada

Every effort has been made to acknowledge original sources and to comply with copyright law. If cases are identified where this has not been done, please notify Manitoba Education and Early Childhood Learning. Errors or omissions will be corrected in a future edition. Sincere thanks to the authors, artists, and publishers who allowed their original material to be used.

All images found in this resource are copyright protected and should not be extracted, accessed, or reproduced for any purpose other than for their intended educational use in this resource.

Any websites referenced in this resource are subject to change without notice. Educators are advised to preview and evaluate websites and online resources before recommending them for student use.

Available in alternate formats upon request.

## **Contents**

Acknowledgements	3
Introduction	4
A Friendly, Supportive, and Caring Environment	4
Programming for EAL Learners	5
Challenges to Consider When Programming for EAL Learners	5
Manitoba Global Competencies	5
Identifying Big Ideas from a Lesson	7
Alternatives to Worksheets	7
Lesson Planning	7
EAL Lesson Planning Process	8
EAL Lesson Plan Frame	9
Some Examples of EAL Stage 1 Learning Goals	10
A Sample of Stage 1 Lesson Plan	11
Some Examples of EAL Stage 2 Learning Goals	12
A Sample of Stage 2 Lesson Plan	13
Some Examples of EAL Stage 3 Learning Goals	14
A Sample of Stage 3 Lesson Plan	15
Resources	16

# Acknowledgements

Manitoba Education and Early Childhood Learning would like to acknowledge the
contributions of the following individuals, funded independent schools, and school
divisions in the development of Support Guide for Teachers of EAL Learners. The
department is grateful to Manitoba school divisions for their expertise, guidance, and
support in developing this resource. Their ideas and resources provided inspiration for
some of the content included in this document

Evelyn Davison	Linden Christian School
Tracey Eagle	St. James-Assiniboia School Division
Patricia Roadley	Pembina Trails School Division
Subbalakshmi (Kala) Kailasanathan	Winnipeg School Division

#### **Manitoba Education and Early Childhood Learning Staff**

Louise Boissonneault

Coordinator	Corporate Services Branch
Cheryl Chorneyko	Student Services Unit
Consultant	Inclusion Support Branch
Kris Grapentine	Information and Web Services Unit
Desktop Publisher	Corporate Services Branch
Jackie Knight	Curriculum Development and
Coordinator	Implementation Unit
(Since May 2021)	Learning and Outcomes Branch
Jayesh Maniar Project Leader	Curriculum Development and Implementation Unit Learning and Outcomes Branch
Grant Moore	Information and Web Services Unit
Publications Editor	Corporate Services Branch
Diana Turner Project Manager (Until May 2021)	Curriculum Implementation Unit Learning and Outcomes Branch

Information and Web Services Unit

#### Introduction

Planning for EAL learners needs to include social-emotional supports as well as language and academic learning. EAL learners bring strengths to their school experiences that teachers can leverage. Building new relationships with their peers and teachers is essential to their well-being and academic growth.

EAL students with grade-level schooling in their home country may also experience trauma, grief, fear, and loss. These students will not have had a choice or a say in the decision to come to a new country. They left everything and everyone they knew to arrive here.

Newcomer students with no prior or interrupted schooling and low literacy skills in any language have often experienced difficult situations, such as conflict, poverty, natural disasters, or culture, and they are moving to a country with a new culture, language, and school system. These stressors will reach all aspects of students' lives, affecting not only them but also their families, communities, and teachers.

When EAL students register in our schools, teachers need to be prepared for a spectrum of student experiences: the possible trauma, fear, grief, and loss that the students may be feeling; leaving behind their friends and classmates; unfamiliarity of their new environment; and a lack of routine and structure in their home and school environment. They may also have positive experiences, such as spending more time with their family, hope for learning new skills, and/or experiencing different ways of doing daily activities.

Remember that if the EAL student's parents are learning English as well, it may be difficult for them to support their children in their schoolwork. Older EAL learners are often challenged by the amount of content presented in a more decontextualized format of lecture, reading, and writing. For these students, language learning and developing subject-area proficiency in English may become another roadblock, increasing feelings of disenfranchisement and disconnection. These factors, among others, may create fear, anxiety, and frustration for EAL learners.

## A Friendly, Supportive, and Caring Environment

Students may be lonely as a result of isolation, worried about their future, and find going to school to be challenging. In addition to all the things that are happening to them by being in a new country and culture, they may also lose motivation. Teachers will see a variety of emotional responses, given there are many types of stressors. Students may have had little time for fun and personal choice; however, they may also have experienced distress due to loneliness, loss of friends, and missing their way of life. It is understandable that EAL students may be frustrated, anxious, fearful, and confused. EAL learners may be demonstrating some effects of trauma and may not understand or be able to express what they are experiencing. Research tells us that emotional well-being is very important to the education process. It enhances attention, learning, and memory. Students will need opportunities for emotional support in addition to academic learning. Support for mental health needs to be an ongoing part of the daily routine.

Teachers can transition EAL students to school with social-emotional support, which can include

- implementing significant safety protocols in school to protect students, staff, families, and community members
- providing a welcoming and a safe environment, which helps students feel safe and allows for their feelings to be acknowledged and respected
- being patient and positive, and building connections
- teaching students words and strategies to describe what they may be feeling, as well as new words that emphasize positive feelings
- starting the day with a check-in, and making personal connections by giving a warm greeting as the EAL learners arrive in the school or classroom
- creating and nurturing kindness through words and notes of encouragement
- embedding daily mindfulness activities, such as breathing exercises, meditation techniques, reflection activities, etc.
- teaching EAL learners to manage conflict and solve problems

- having students work with assigned partners and intentional groupings to build community so they do not feel alone
- slowing down the pace of expected goals, and planning for positive structures in your environment that allow for talk time or expression of feelings through art, storytelling, kinesthetic movement, and metacognitive activities
- keeping lessons manageable and rigorous, allowing students to enhance their feelings of confidence and well-being through their own academic achievement
- encouraging EAL learners to use their home language for social and academic benefits

When teachers surround students with a friendly, supportive, and caring environment, they are responding to trauma, creating a growth mindset, and developing resilience.

### **Programming for EAL Learners**

Schools will use the <u>EAL Intake Process</u> documents to determine the stage of English language acquisition for new EAL learners; for returning EAL students, schools will use the <u>EAL Framework</u>. Using the EAL Framework, teachers will provide appropriate programming for English language learning along with subject-area content.

Programming for EAL learners is dependent on their stage of English language acquisition. If the student is in Stages 1 or 2 for Early Years or Stages 1, 2, or 3 in Middle and Senior Years, the subject-area curriculum will need to be significantly adjusted to accommodate for English language learning. Teachers will identify the language required to learn the concepts, topics, issues, and processes of their subject-area content and provide appropriate scaffolds. To effectively plan for EAL learners, big ideas, social and academic language, and subject-area learning need to be integrated.

## **Challenges to Consider When Programming for EAL Learners**

EAL learners struggle with both the English language and with the content taught in English. They may face challenges at home, such as

- they may have limited or no access to technology and/or the Internet, or they may not have sufficient technology literacy to engage with a lesson involving technology
- their parents may not have the knowledge or the skills to help them with their schoolwork
- they and their parents may be confused when schools assign homework, and they may not be able to navigate through the language as well as the structure of the lessons
- they may have difficulty enhancing social and academic language
- they may not understand how and what they need to accomplish for the lesson

### **Manitoba Global Competencies**

Manitoba Education and Early Childhood Learning has adopted six global competencies that are an overarching set of attitudes, skills, knowledge, and values that provide learners with "the abilities to meet the shifting and ongoing demands of life, work, and learning; to be active and responsive in their communities, and to understand diverse perspectives" (CMEC). Global competencies are complex ways of knowing, being, doing, and becoming that are multi-faceted, interdependent, trans-disciplinary, and developed over time.

Global competencies are interdependent, interconnected, and transferable and provide a rich and holistic experience for learning. The six Manitoba global competencies are:

Creativity

Citizenship

Connection to Self

Communication

Critical Thinking

Collaboration

**Creativity** involves the interaction of intuition and logic. It is exploring and playing with ideas and concepts to represent thinking, solve problems, explore opportunities and innovate in unique ways.

The competency of creativity facilitates the generation and expression of ideas, concepts, solutions and opportunities that are novel and have meaning and value for self, others or the natural world. It fosters open-mindedness, curiosity, flexibility, risk-taking and perseverance to put ideas into action.

Creativity is fundamental to finding and expressing a sense of wonder, initiative, ingenuity and hope.

**Citizenship** involves engaging and working toward a more compassionate and sustainable world through the development and value of relationships with self, others and the natural world.

The competency of citizenship facilitates an understanding of the complex interactions among cultural, ecological, economic, political and social forces and their impacts on individuals, communities and the world. It fosters reflection and consideration of diverse perspectives for ethical decisions that drive responsible and sustainable actions.

Citizenship is fundamental to understanding who we are, that we have the capacity to make a difference and to make choices that contribute to our communities, for the well-being of all.

**Connection to Self** involves awareness of the related nature of emotional, intellectual, physical, social, cultural and spiritual aspects of living and learning, and the responsibility for personal growth, well-being and well-becoming.

The competency of Connection to Self facilitates the development of reflection, regulation, advocacy and management, which empower one to act with mindfulness and intention. The learner will recognize the value of their gifts, culture and history. They will build initiative, perseverance and flexibility, and manage failure and success as part of the learning process.

Connection to Self is fundamental to knowing oneself, developing hope, resilience, self-respect and confidence. It is recognizing your role in your learning, happiness and well-being.

**Critical Thinking** involves the intentional process of analyzing and synthesizing ideas using criteria and evidence, making thoughtful decisions and reflecting on the outcomes and implications of those decisions.

The competency of critical thinking facilitates the in-depth examination of situations, questions, problems, opportunities and perspectives. It encompasses a willingness to challenge assumptions, thoughts, beliefs and actions.

Critical thinking is fundamental to learning more broadly and deeply, and making ethical decisions as reflective and contributing citizens.

**Collaboration** involves learning with and from others and working together with a shared commitment to pursue common purposes and accomplish common goals.

The competency of collaboration facilitates the co-construction of meaning to support deeper reflection and collective understanding through the exchange and negotiation of ideas. The process of collaboration demands an openness to different perspectives and the sharing of responsibilities and planning. Effective collaboration results in the creation of something better.

Collaboration is fundamental to knowing oneself as a learner (in relation to others/working in a group), developing positive relationships and participating in the learning process with confidence and motivation.

**Communication** involves interacting with others, allowing for a message to be received, expressed and understood in multiple ways and for a variety of purposes.

The competency of communication facilitates the acquisition, development and transformation of ideas and information as well as the awareness, understanding, management and expression of emotions. It allows one to make connections with others, share ideas, express individuality, deepen learning and celebrate accomplishments. Communication involves understanding personal, local and global perspectives, and societal and cultural contexts.

Communication is fundamental to connecting to others and sharing/thinking about ideas, and to developing one's identity and sense of belonging.

These global competencies need to be identified and reflected upon in each lesson being presented to the EAL student.

### **Identifying Big Ideas from a Lesson**

Big ideas are rich language-enhancing tasks that focus on the central idea of a lesson, topic, or unit that requires students to use language to articulate understanding. For example, a big idea in science would be "multicellular organ systems enable organisms to survive and interact within their environment"; in social studies, a big idea would be "geography is the mother of all history."

To develop a big idea from your lesson, topic, or concept,

- identify four or five main concepts that are key to the lesson
- summarize these concepts in one or two sentences
- outline the importance of these concepts for students
- determine the language demands of this big idea
- plan activities/strategies for learning
- identify Manitoba global competency/competencies that will be highlighted

#### **Alternatives to Worksheets**

Although worksheets may be used occasionally, EAL students may find them challenging to complete and may not find them to be very exciting. They may not have acquired sufficient language to understand the instructions or the concepts to engage with the worksheet.

Consider the following questions:

- What activities can activate thinking, language, and content?
- What experiential activity can replace the worksheet?
- Is there a way that learning activities can replace worksheets?

### **Lesson Planning**

As a lesson is developed for EAL student(s), the following section on the EAL Lesson Planning Process and accompanying EAL Lesson Plan Frame will be useful.

## **EAL Lesson Planning Process**

#### Friendly, Supportive, and Caring Environment **MANITOBA GLOBAL COMPETENCIES Identify Subject-Area Content:** Identify strategies for in-class Choose academic Specify English Lesson What are the big ideas the language learning learning, using technology, language to Planning students need to know? emphasize content. expectations. and learning at home. Assessment Ongoing formative assessment: Triangulate data from student product, student reflection, and teacher observation.

- 1. Identify subject-area topic, concept, or process the class will be learning. For EAL learners, identify big ideas and required skills for this lesson, topic, or unit.
- 2. Choose the language that students will need to navigate through this topic. Consider visuals, videos, print materials, and/or graphic organizers when planning the lesson. Ensure activities are interactive and culturally responsive. Identify academic tasks that extend across curricular environments.
- 3. Specify language learning expectations and strategies for EAL students based on their stage of English language acquisition, as indicated in the charts on the following pages. Please refer to the EAL Framework for more detailed goals at various stages in all four domains.
- 4. Plan how the EAL students will be interacting with the content so they benefit from the subject area and become more proficient in using English. Identify strategies and activities that will enhance language and content learning.
  - a. Integrate the use of the student's home language. Literacy skills can transfer across languages.
  - b. Identify the Manitoba global competency/competencies that will be highlighted in this lesson.
  - c. Design appropriate experiential learning activities, such as reading and writing (e.g., correspondence) in English as well as in home language; use graphic organizers, games, projects, picture word inductive model (PWIM), sentence frames, Twitter responses (restricted to 280 letters, either as a tweet or on paper); watch videos (e.g., TedTalk, Khan Academy); create a PowerPoint presentation; make a photo story or flash cards; engage in reciprocal learning, where two students can connect at home or by phone; etc. If using a movie or a video in English, consider turning on English subtitles.
  - d. Plan for the possibility that EAL learners may continue their learning at home using homework, assignments, or projects.
- 5. Design formative and summative assessments of the language goals in conjunction with the subject-area content.

Note: On the following page is a sample blank EAL Lesson Plan Frame. For an electronic, fillable version of this form, visit <a href="https://www.edu.gov.mb.ca/k12/cur/eal/resources.html">www.edu.gov.mb.ca/k12/cur/eal/resources.html</a>.

## **EAL Lesson Plan Frame**

Grade and Subject:	
Lesson Topic:	
Stage:	

Big Idea: Content-Area	Subject-Area Vocabulary	ect-Area Vocabulary English Language Strategies  Expectations In Class Manitoha Global Competencies Using Technology	English Language Stra		Assessment	
Goals		Expectations	In Class	Manitoba Global Competencies	Using Technology	
1.						
2.						
3.						

#### **Some Examples of** *EAL Stage 1* **Learning Goals**

Please see the more complete and detailed list of EAL goals in the EAL Framework.

Early Yea	rs
-----------	----

- Recognizes basic English discourse features (e.g., and, on, with, in, beside)
- Understands main idea of simple sentences, questions, and interactions and responds appropriately
- Mimics pronunciation of words and phrases, including intonation and stress patterns (e.g., raising intonation to phrase a question)
- Expresses basic emotions, preferences, needs, and wants using single words or short phrases (e.g., "I sad/happy", "I like yellow", "washroom, please", or asking for permission)
- Knows and uses an emergent repertoire of environmental print and sight words
- Recognizes and gains meaning from simple words and sentences, with extensive modelling and guidance, on familiar topics with visuals, repetition, and patterns
- Writes simple words and sentences on familiar topics, with support
- Writes brief personal responses to show level of understanding of a familiar topic (may be illustrated)
- Recognizes and orders sequential elements of a story, process, or series
  of events, with visual support (e.g., places pictures in order of a simple
  story)
- Knows a few basic words and facts related to Canadian geography
- · Checks copied written work for accuracy

#### **Middle Years**

- Recognizes basic English discourse features (e.g., and, so, on, with, next)
- Understands main idea of simple sentences, questions, and interactions, and responds appropriately
- Mimics pronunciation of words and phrases, including intonation and stress patterns (e.g., raising intonation to phrase a question)
- Expresses basic emotions, preferences, needs, and wants using single words or short phrases (e.g., "I sad/happy", "I like yellow", "washroom, please", or asking for permission)
- Recognizes and gains meaning from simple words and sentences, with extensive modelling and guidance, on familiar topics with visuals, repetition, and patterns
- Knows and uses an emergent repertoire of words and phrases in familiar contexts
- Writes simple words and sentences on familiar topics, with some independence, and authors meaningful chunks of language with modelling and support in familiar classroom contexts
- Produces brief personal responses, which may include illustrations, to show their level of understanding of a familiar topic
- Recognizes and orders sequential elements of a story, process, or series
  of events, with visual support (e.g., places pictures in order of a simple
  story)
- Knows a few basic words and facts related to Canadian geography, Canada's political system, or peoples of Canada
- Seeks assistance and asks for repetition

#### **Senior Years**

- Recognizes familiar words and basic phrases when people speak clearly and slowly
- Understands main idea of simple sentences, questions, and interactions and responds appropriately
- Speaks in structured and familiar situations using words, phrases, and simple sentences
- Expresses basic emotions, preferences, needs, and wants using single words or short phrases (e.g., "I sad/happy", "I like yellow", "washroom, please" or asking for permission)
- · Uses picture clues to gain understanding
- Decodes and comprehends simple familiar words and short phrases
- · Writes simple words and sentences on familiar topics, with support
- Writes brief personal responses that may include illustrations, to show level of understanding of a familiar topic
- Copies essential information and benefits from scaffolds, such as cloze passages, word lists, and paragraph frames for longer texts
- Knows a few basic words and facts related to Canadian geography, Canada's political system, or peoples of Canada
- Seeks assistance and asks for repetition

# A Sample of Stage 1 Lesson Plan

**Grade 4 Social Studies** Grade and Subject:

Symbols and Monuments Lesson Topic:

Stage:

Big Idea: Content-Area	Subject-Area Vocabulary	English Language Expectations		Strategies		Assessment
Goals			In Class	Manitoba Global Competencies	Using Technology	
1. Symbols, monuments, and important days	Anthem, flag, monument, statue, symbol, province, territory, holiday, celebration, flower, bird, animal	<ul> <li>Recognizes basic English discourse features, such as patterned sentences</li> <li>Demonstrates an emergent repertoire of words, and matches pictures to words</li> <li>Demonstrates understanding of the meaning of simple words, and names concrete objects</li> <li>Writes simple words and sentences</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Practise pronunciation and spelling</li> <li>Use flash cards (digital or paper)</li> <li>Use sentence frames</li> <li>Communicate in simple sentences</li> <li>Match pictures to words</li> <li>Use cloze passages</li> <li>Complete sentence frames</li> <li>Use graphic organizers</li> <li>Draw, compare, and contrast Canadian symbols, flag, and anthem with ones from their home country</li> <li>Develop picture dictionary</li> <li>Assign books to read</li> </ul>	Communication:     Begin to have conversation     with teacher and other     students using simple     words and phrases	<ul> <li>Use electronic platforms such as Kahoot!, Seesaw, online books, Quizizz, etc.</li> <li>Use speech-to-text tool for students to record themselves and play it back</li> <li>Bilingual Glossaries and Cognates</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Assess understanding of key words and concepts in a conversation or a non- verbal assessment (such as "show me", "point to", etc.)</li> <li>Communicates basic idea</li> <li>Writes simple sentences/ personal response</li> </ul>
2.						
3.						

# Some Examples of EAL Stage 2 Learning Goals

Please see more complete and detailed list of EAL goals in the EAL Framework

Please see more complete and detailed list of EAL goals in the <u>EAL Framework</u>							
Early Years	Middle Years	Senior Years					
<ul> <li>Understands the gist of an oral or media presentation in structured situations</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Understands the gist of an oral or media presentation in structured situations</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Understands the gist of an oral or media presentation in structured situations</li> </ul>					
Responds to teachers and peers in common daily interactions, instructions, questions, warnings, and other requests (e.g., "slow down", "mayor place.")	<ul> <li>Responds to teachers and peers in common daily interactions, instructions, questions, warnings, and other requests (e.g., "slow down",</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Understands simple and familiar conversations, questions, and statements when spoken slowly and clearly</li> </ul>					
<ul> <li>"move over, please")</li> <li>Knows and uses a developing repertoire of words and phrases for familiar classroom, academic, and social purposes</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>"move over, please")</li> <li>Produces simple statements and questions in spontaneous speech, expresses personal responses, and identifies emotions, requests,</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Produces statements, questions, and commends in planned, routine, and spontaneous speech</li> </ul>					
Produces, with guidance, a short oral presentation on a personal or	favourite people, places, or things	<ul> <li>Presents, with guidance, a short oral presentation on a personal or familiar academic topic with guidance and preparation aid</li> </ul>					
familiar topic in a structured situation with visual aids (e.g., retelling a story or experience, show and tell)	<ul> <li>Presents, with guidance, a short oral presentation on a personal or familiar academic topic in a structured situation with visual aids (e.g.,</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Achieves fluency with common sight words, as well as specifically taught words and phrases</li> </ul>					
<ul> <li>Demonstrates fluency with a developing range of sight words, as well as specifically taught words and phrases</li> </ul>	<ul><li>retelling a story or experience)</li><li>Knows and uses a developing range of sight words, as well as</li></ul>	Comprehends a range of simple familiar text passages (e.g., menu, table of contents, bus schedule, magazine, short story, non-fiction texts)					
Reads and gains meaning from a series of connected sentences on familiar topics in an increasing range of text forms with structured	<ul> <li>specifically taught words and phrases</li> <li>Reads and gains meaning from a series of connected sentences on</li> </ul>	Composes using basic mechanical features of writing (e.g., capital letters, punctuation, indentation, bulleted list)					
<ul> <li>Uses a developing range of basic mechanical features (e.g., capital</li> </ul>	familiar topics in an increasing range of text forms with structured supports and visual aids	<ul> <li>Understands and uses key taught vocabulary within subject area when introduced in a contextual manner</li> </ul>					
letters, punctuation, list) with support  • Produces a simple text of interrelated ideas on a familiar topic in a	<ul> <li>Uses a developing range of basic mechanical features (e.g., capital letters, word spacing, punctuation, list) with support</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Knows basic vocabulary and concepts related to Canadian geography, peoples of Canada, and historical events, relevant to grade level</li> </ul>					
structured situation with guidance (e.g., completes sentence frames or a pattern book)	<ul> <li>Produces a simple text of interrelated ideas on a familiar topic in structured situations with guidance (e.g., completes sentence or</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Takes notes from text and presentation; copies from a source (e.g., uses</li> </ul>					
Connects background knowledge in home language with new	paragraph frames, pattern frames, or T-charts)	graphic organizer, two-column style)					
vocabulary and concepts in English for academic and social purposes (e.g., uses math skills learned in L1 to solve word problems in English; creates and uses a personal dictionary)	<ul> <li>Connects background knowledge in home language with new vocabulary and concepts in English for academic and social purposes (e.g., uses math skills learned in L1 to solve word problems in English;</li> </ul>						
Knows basic vocabulary and concepts related to Canadian geography	creates and uses a personal dictionary)						

• Knows basic vocabulary and concepts related to Canadian geography,

• Takes notes, organizes and reviews notes, and checks copied work for

peoples of Canada, relevant to grade level

accuracy

and peoples of Canada, relevant to grade level

• Uses familiar sentence patterns to form new sentences

# A Sample of Stage 2 Lesson Plan

Grade 6 Science Grade and Subject:

**Electrical Circuits** Lesson Topic:

Stage:

Big Idea: Content-Area	Subject-Area Vocabulary	English Language	Strategies			Strategies			Assessment
Goals		Expectations	In Class	Manitoba Global Competencies	Using Technology				
<ol> <li>Electrical circuits provide a way of moving and transforming energy</li> <li>2.</li> <li>3.</li> </ol>	Electricity, electrician, light bulb, resource, wires, light box, circuit	<ul> <li>Knows and uses a developing range of sight words, as well as specifically taught words or phrases</li> <li>Connects background knowledge (home language is encouraged)</li> <li>Produces text of interrelated ideas, takes notes, and organizes and reviews notes for accuracy</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Transcribe oral and written sentences (with some errors)</li> <li>Follow instruction</li> <li>Use charts, word walls, diagrams, and pictures</li> <li>Use graphic organizers</li> <li>Use think-pair-share</li> <li>Read and comprehend the gist of articles on this topic</li> <li>Sign book out of library to read and write about electrical systems</li> <li>Create a dual language content-area word bank</li> <li>Work on a project designing a circuit board</li> </ul>	Communication: Use conversation with teacher and other students using developing repertoire of words and phrases  Collaboration: Listen and share ideas on circuits with other students to develop confidence and an enhanced understanding of how electrical energy moves	<ul> <li>Look up L1 equivalent to new vocabulary</li> <li>Transcribe notes from assigned YouTube/Khan Academy videos</li> <li>Make a video or PowerPoint presentation (see How to Quickly Record Narrated Presentations in Canva)</li> <li>Bilingual Glossaries and Cognates</li> <li>Use electronic platforms such as Kahoot!, Seesaw, online books, Quizizz, etc.</li> <li>Find images online that describe where circuits are used; use websites such as Photos for Class to get appropriate images</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Label diagram, with or without word bank</li> <li>Discuss observations related to content, vocabulary, and concept using simple sentences</li> <li>Explain the role of Canacin innovation around electricity and energy</li> </ul>			

## Some Examples of EAL Stage 3 Learning Goals

Please see more complete and detailed list of EAL goals in the EAL Framework

#### **Middle Years**

- Understands longer and more complex interactions in familiar settings with ease
- Recognizes and interprets new idiomatic expressions
- Understands and uses a developing repertoire of words and phrases in a variety of new classroom, academic, and social contexts
- Produces a short prepared or spontaneous oral presentation on a personal or researched topic with visual aids or electronic media
- Comprehends main idea and gives some details of a portion of a narrative and factual text with preparation and support
- Recognizes basic discourse features with some consistency and awareness of meaning (e.g., because, however, if-then, and other cue words for cause-effect relationships, and prepositions of time and place)
- Uses the basic mechanics of writing consistently and correctly with limited support, and is beginning to develop some awareness of more sophisticated features (e.g., colons, semi-colons, parentheses, and ellipses)
- Authors text containing a series of interrelated ideas dealing with a familiar personal or academic topic, fiction
  or non-fiction, near age-/grade-appropriate, with support (e.g., uses a template to write a book)
- Demonstrates understanding of cohesion and coherence, and produces texts of two or three paragraphs, using discourse features and common patterns (e.g., cause and effect, beginning-middle-end, time sequencing, steps in a procedure)
- Recognizes the value of other perspectives, languages, and cultures to enhance learning, and recognizes and explains the value of diversity and similarities in the classroom, school, or local community
- · Asks for clarification; asks for confirmation

#### **Senior Years**

- Understands longer and more complex interactions in familiar settings with ease
- Understands the main points and states some details of a short oral presentation, discussion, or multimedia presentation
- Understands and uses a developing repertoire of words and phrases in a variety of new classroom, academic, and social contexts
- Performs prepared academic presentations with visual aids (e.g., role playing, drama, pictures, realia, or multimedia)
- Recognizes and understands basic mechanics, discourse, and text features within text
- Comprehends the main idea and gives some details of a portion of a narrative and factual text, with visual aids to support abstract ideas
- Produces text containing a series of interrelated ideas with support (e.g., use a template to report on a science experiment, email, recipes, two-three column note taking)
- Uses the basic mechanics of writing consistently and correctly with limited support, and is beginning to develop some awareness of more sophisticated features (e.g., punctuation, bold face, events in a sequence or a series)
- Completes basic academic tasks independently
- Demonstrates recognition and respect for diverse perspectives, and checks for agreement and understanding in a group
- Acts on a lack of understanding by asking for clarification or confirmation and consulting resources for support

## A Sample of Stage 3 Lesson Plan

**Grade and Subject:** Grade 11 History

**Lesson Topic:** First Peoples of Canada

Stage: \_\_\_\_\_

Big Idea: Content-Area	Subject-Area Vocabulary	English Language	Strategies					Assessment
Goals		Expectations	In Class	Manitoba Global Competencies	Using Technology			
1. Who are the First Peoples?	First People, First Nation, nation, Ininew, Anishinabek, Dakota, Inuit, Dene, archeology, evidence, Métis, traditions, Indigenous, colonization, citizenship, spirituality, Confederation, government, self-government, settlement, culture, clan, patriarchy, matriarchy	<ul> <li>Understands and uses a developing repertoire of words in the main idea of a presentation</li> <li>Produces extended text (with support)</li> <li>Recognizes and respects diverse perspectives</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Watch videos</li> <li>Use three-column note taking</li> <li>Do a comparative analysis of provided media text</li> <li>Produce text or a timeline containing a series of interrelated ideas on First Peoples of Canada</li> <li>Provide original sources, make notes, and highlight emergent vocabulary</li> <li>Conduct guided research and note-taking</li> <li>What is First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Peoples' ongoing role in shaping Canada's history?</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Collaboration: Students at this stage begin to work together to develop language and to compare their culture and ideas to better understand the histories and cultures of the First Peoples of Canada</li> <li>Creativity: Students experiment with print and visual texts to enhance their understanding of the First Peoples of Canada's role in shaping Canada's history</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Create a presentation</li> <li>Visit a virtual museum to gain more insight into Canada's First Peoples such as the <u>Virtual Museum of Métis History and Culture</u></li> <li>Use electronic platforms such as Kahoot!, Seesaw, online books, Quizizz, etc.</li> <li><u>Bilingual Glossaries and Cognates</u></li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Compare and contrast graphic organizer</li> <li>Develop an annotated timeline of important events</li> </ul>		
2.								
3.								

**Note:** The examples of EAL learning goals and sample lesson plans included in this document are targeted towards early stage EAL learners. While the social-emotional recommendations can be used for English language learners across all stages, the academic programming suggestions mainly target students in Stages 1 and 2 in the Early Years and Stages 1, 2, and 3 in the Middle and Senior Years, as language loss and language acquisition delay due to prolonged disruption of school can be more pronounced for these stages. Considering students in Stage 3 in the Early Years, Stage 4 in the Middle Years, and Stages 4 and 5 in the Senior Years are becoming more proficient in using English, classroom adjustments to academic programming may be required.

#### Resources

- Busone Rodriguez, Ashley, and Isabel Mendoza, *Supporting Immigrants in School: Resource Guide*, Tatyana Kleyn, editor, The City College of New York, 2019.
- Byrne, Richard. *How to Quickly Record Narrated Presentations in Canva*. YouTube.com, March 9, 2022, <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sOfiR5DhFdl">www.youtube.com/watch?v=sOfiR5DhFdl</a>.
- Carvalho, Shelby, Jack Rossiter, Norm Angrist, Susannah Hares, and Rachel Silverman. *Planning for School Reopening and Recovery After Covid-19: An Evidence Kit for Policymakers*, Center for Global Development, May 29, 2020, <a href="https://www.cgdev.org/publication/planning-school-reopening-and-recovery-after-covid-19">www.cgdev.org/publication/planning-school-reopening-and-recovery-after-covid-19</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Catellier, C., S. Doerksen, et al. *Returning to School: Guide for School Staff.* Hanover School Division Student Services, 2020.
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. "Helping Children Cope with Emergencies." *Caring for Children in a Disaster*, 2019, <a href="www.cdc.gov/childrenindisasters/helping-children-cope.html">www.cdc.gov/childrenindisasters/helping-children-cope.html</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Clever Prototypes LLC. *Photos for Class*. Clever Prototypes LLC, 2022, <a href="https://photosforclass.com">https://photosforclass.com</a>.
- Council of Ministers of Education, Canada (CMEC). *Global Competencies—Pan-Canadian Systems-Level Framework on Global Competencies*. CMEC, 2018, <a href="www.globalcompetencies.cmec.ca/global-competencies">www.globalcompetencies.cmec.ca/global-competencies</a>.
- Cummins, Jim, and Margaret Early. *Big Ideas for Expanding Minds: Teaching English Language Learners Across the Curriculum*. Pearson, 2015.
- Donohue, Chad. *Give the Kid a Pencil*. Teaching Tolerance, 2016, <a href="www.tolerance.org/magazine/give-the-kid-a-pencil">www.tolerance.org/magazine/give-the-kid-a-pencil</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Ferlazzo, Larry. "Strategies for Helping Students Motivate Themselves." *Edutopia*, 2015, <u>www.edutopia</u>. org/blog/strategies-helping-students-motivate-themselves-larry-ferlazzo. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Gabriel Dumont Institute of Native Studies and Applied Research (GDI). *Virtual Museum of Métis History and Culture*. GDI, n.d., <u>www.metismuseum.ca/index.php</u>.
- Haynes, Judie. *9 Ideas to Support ELs' Social-Emotional Learning*, tesol International Association, 2015, <a href="http://blog.tesol.org/9-ideas-to-support-els-social-emotional-learning">http://blog.tesol.org/9-ideas-to-support-els-social-emotional-learning</a>/. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Huynh, Tan. "How to Write Language and Culture Objectives." *A MiddleWeb Blog*, July 6, 2020, <u>www.</u> middleweb.com/43255/how-to-write-language-and-culture-objectives/. Retrieved July 31, 2020.

- LaHayne, Sara. "Helping Students Process Their Feelings During Remote Learning." Edutopia, July 1, 2020, <a href="https://www.edutopia.org/article/helping-students-process-their-feelings-during-remote-learning">www.edutopia.org/article/helping-students-process-their-feelings-during-remote-learning</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Lima, Jailson. *Teaching Tip: The Role of Big Ideas in Active Learning*. Vanier College, September 23, 2013, <a href="https://www.vaniercollege.qc.ca/pdo/files/2013/09/A13-TT05-Teaching-Tip-Big-Ideas-in-AL.pdf">www.vaniercollege.qc.ca/pdo/files/2013/09/A13-TT05-Teaching-Tip-Big-Ideas-in-AL.pdf</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Manitoba Education. "Curriculum Essentials." *Manitoba Education*, 2020, <u>www.edu.gov.mb.ca/k12/cur/essentials/index.html</u>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Maxwell, Lesli A. "It's a Critical Time for Student Well-Being." *Education Week*, April 7, 2020, <u>www.edweek.org/ew/articles/2020/04/08/its-a-critical-time-for-well-being.html</u>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Merenda, Elena, and Nikki Martyn. "Children's Grief in Coronavirus Quarantine May Look Like Anger. Here's How Parents Can Respond." *The Conversation*, April 27, 2020, <a href="https://theconversation.com/childrens-grief-in-coronavirus-quarantine-may-look-like-anger-heres-how-parents-can-respond-135348">https://theconversation.com/childrens-grief-in-coronavirus-quarantine-may-look-like-anger-heres-how-parents-can-respond-135348</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- North Vancouver School District. "Big Ideas by Grade." *NVSD44 Curriculum Hub*, 2020, <a href="http://nvsd44curriculumhub.ca/big-ideas-list/">http://nvsd44curriculumhub.ca/big-ideas-list/</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- . "Big Ideas by Grade All Grades." NVSD44 Curriculum Hub, 2020, <a href="http://nvsd44curriculumhub.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Big-Ideas-by-Grade.pdf">http://nvsd44curriculumhub.ca/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Big-Ideas-by-Grade.pdf</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- NYS Statewide Language Regional Bilingual Education Resource Network. *Bilingual Glossaries and Cognates*. Metropolitan Center for Research on Equity and the Transformation of Schools, 2022, <a href="https://steinhardt.nyu.edu/metrocenter/language-rbern/resources/bilingual-glossaries-and-cognates">https://steinhardt.nyu.edu/metrocenter/language-rbern/resources/bilingual-glossaries-and-cognates</a>.
- Pate, Christina. "Strategies for Trauma-Informed Distance Learning." *Center to Improve Social and Emotional Learning and School Safety*, 2020, <a href="https://selcenter.wested.org/resource/strategies-fortrauma-informed-distance-learning/">https://selcenter.wested.org/resource/strategies-fortrauma-informed-distance-learning/</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Peterson, Mary. "Keeping the Joy in Learning: Six Best Alternatives to Worksheets." *Teacher Treasures*, 2018, <a href="https://www.teachertreasures.com/2018/04/15/six-best-alternatives-to-worksheets/">www.teachertreasures.com/2018/04/15/six-best-alternatives-to-worksheets/</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Robertson, Kristina. "Distance Learning for ELLs: Planning Instruction." ¡Colorín Colorado!, 2020, www. colorincolorado.org/article/distance-learning-ells-instruction. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Segar, Sara. "Why I Don't Give My Students Worksheets and What I Do Instead." *Experiential Learning Depot*, May 21, 2019, <a href="www.experientiallearningdepot.com/blog/why-i-dont-give-my-students-worksheets-and-what-i-do-instead">worksheets-and-what-i-do-instead</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.

- Singer, Tonya Ward. EL Excellence Everyday. Corwin, 2018.
- Strasser, Janis, and Lisa Mufson Bresson. *Big Questions for Young Minds: Extending Children's Thinking*. National Association for the Education of Young Children, NAEYC Books, 2017.
- Udovitsch, Alyssa. "ESL/ELL Resources to Succeed in School." *Community for Accredited Online Schools*, n.d., <u>www.accreditedschoolsonline.org/resources/esl-ell-resources-for-teachers-parents-and-students/</u>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- UNESCO. Supporting Teachers in Back-to-School Efforts after Covid-19 Closures: A Toolkit for School Leaders. UNESCO, June 19, 2020, <a href="https://en.unesco.org/news/supporting-teachers-back-school-efforts-after-covid-19-closures-toolkit-school-leaders">https://en.unesco.org/news/supporting-teachers-back-school-efforts-after-covid-19-closures-toolkit-school-leaders</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- University of Wisconsin-Madison Libraries. "ESL/ELL Education: Interactive Websites for Learning." *Research Guides*, 2020, <a href="https://researchguides.library.wisc.edu/c.php?g=177873&p=1169756">https://researchguides.library.wisc.edu/c.php?g=177873&p=1169756</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.
- Will, Madeline. "The Success of Social-Emotional Learning Hinges on Teachers." *Education Week*, viewed April 7, 2020, <a href="www.edweek.org/ew/articles/2020/04/08/the-success-of-social-emotional-learning-hinges-on.html">www.edweek.org/ew/articles/2020/04/08/the-success-of-social-emotional-learning-hinges-on.html</a>. Retrieved July 31, 2020.

Support Guide for Teachers of EAL Learners: Version 1.0